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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA
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INDICTMENT FOR CONSPIRACY TO OPERATE
AN ENTERPRISE THROUGH A PATTERN OF RACKETEERING
ACTIVITY, CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT MAIL FRAUD, AND MAIL FRAUD

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
V.

ALAN GREEN
NORMAN BOWLEY

The Grand Jury charges that:
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18 U.S.C. § 1962

18 U.S.C. § 1963
18 U.S.C. § 1341
18 U.S.C. § 1346
18 US.C. § 371
18US.C. §2

COUNT 1 - CONSPIRACY TO OPERATE AN ENTERPRISE
THROUGH A PATTERN OF RACKETEERING ACTIVITY

A. At All Times Material Herein:

1. The defendant, ALAN GREEN, was a public officer holding a high-level decision-

making position, namely an elected district judge assigned to Division “C” of the 24th Judicial

District Court for the Parish of Jefferson, State of Louisiana.

2. The defendant, NORMAN BOWLEY, was a Gretna, Louisiana bail bondsman and

the Chief Financial Officer of Bail Bonds Unlimited, Inc. (hereinafter “BBU”).

3. BBU was a bail bonds company licensed and regulated by the Louisiana Department

of Insurance (hereinafter “DOI”’) and engaged in the business of insurance, whose activities affected
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interstate commerce. Beginning in or about 1991 and continuing until the date of this indictment,
BBU provided commercial surety bail bonds for individuals who had been arrested for crimes in
Jefferson Parish, Louisiana and elsewhere. BBU was the largest bail bonding company in Jefferson
Parish, Louisiana.

4. Pursuant to Louisiana law, a bail bond agent is licensed and regulated by the DOI to
market and sell bail bonds. The DOI and Louisiana law required that, in order for a bail bond
company to continue writing bonds in Louisiana, all bail bonds posted in Louisiana must be
underwritten by an insurance company approved by the DOI. To ensure the continued validity of
a particular bail bond, a bail bond company would regularly send an insurance premium payment to
its insurance company for that bond.

5. Louisiana law, specifically Louisiana Revised Statutes, Title 14, Article 118, defines
the felony offense of public bribery as the acceptance or offering to accept, directly or indirectly,
anything of apparent present or prospective value by any person elected to public office or any public
officer with the intent to influence the conduct of that person in relation to his or her position,
employment, or duty. Louisiana law also defines the felony offense of public bribery as the giving
or offering to give, directly or indirectly, anything of apparent present or prospective value to any
person elected to public office or any public officer with the intent to influence the conduct of that
person in relation to his or her position, employment, or duty.

6. The laws of the State of Louisiana provided that Louisiana district judges shall be
faithful to the law; shall be unswayed by partisan interests; shall perform judicial duties without bias
or prejudice; shall not, in the performance of judicial duties, by words or conduct manifest bias or
prejudice; shall not permit private or ex parte interviews, arguments or communications designed
to influence their judicial action in any case, either civil or criminal; and shall dispose of all judicial

matters promptly, efficiently and fairly.

+
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B. The Co-conspirators

1. Louis Marcotte was a Gretna, Louisiana bail bond agent licensed under the laws of
the State of Louisiana and was the president of BBU.

2. Lori Marcotte was a Gretna, Louisiana bail bond agent licensed under the laws of the
State of Louisiana and was the Vice President of BBU.

3. Attorney #1 was the corporate attorney for BBU.

C. The Racketeering Enterprise

Division “C” of the 24™ Judicial District for the Parish of Jefferson, State of Louisiana,
constituted an “Enterprise” as that term is defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section
1961(4), which was engaged in, and the activities of which affected, interstate commerce.

D. The Racketeering Conspiracy

1. Beginning at a date unknown but prior to 2000, and continuing through the date of
this indictment, in the Eastern District of Louisiana and elsewhere, the defendant, ALAN
GREEN, and the defendant, NORMAN BOWLEY, being persons employed by and associated
with the enterprise, which enterprise engaged in, and the activities of which affected, interstate
commerce, did conspire together and with other persons known and unknown to the Grand Jury
to violate Title 18, United States Code, Section 1962(c), that is, to conduct and participate,
directly and indirectly, in the conduct of the affairs of the enterprise through a pattern of
racketeering activity consisting of multiple acts involving bribery in violation of Louisiana
Revised Statutes, Title 14, Article 118 (Public Bribery), and multiple acts indictable under Title
18, United States Code, Sections 1341 and 1346 (Mail Fraud).

2. It was part of the conspiracy that each defendant agreed with co-conspirators and
agreed that a conspirator would commit at least two Acts of Racketeering in the conduct of the

affairs of the enterprise.
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E. Purpose, Method, and Means of the Conspiracy

The form and substance of the conspiracy was as follows:

1. It was a part of the conspiracy that the defendant, ALAN GREEN, would use his
office and position as an elected Louisiana district judge to enrich himself by extracting bribes in
the form of cash, gifts, meals, entertainment, and other things of value from individuals and
organizations with business in GREEN’s court, including but not limited to the defendant,
NORMAN BOWLEY, Louis Marcotte, Lori Marcotte, and BBU.

2. It was a further part of the conspiracy that, in return for things of value, the
defendant, ALAN GREEN, would make himself available to BBU; quickly respond to the
requests of BBU; and set, reduce, increase, and split bonds to maximize BBU’s profits, minimize
BBU’s liability, and hinder BBU’s competition.

3. It was a further part of the conspiracy that the defendant, ALAN GREEN, the
defendant, NORMAN BOWLEY, Louis Marcotte, Lori Marcotte, and others known and
unknown to the Grand Jury, used the United States mails and other private interstate carriers to
process BBU bonds which had been corruptly obtained and to disguise cash payments as
campaign contributions.

4. It was a further part of the conspiracy that, to allow BBU to maximize its profits,
the defendant, ALAN GREEN, would engage in the practice of “bond splitting.” Bond splitting
would commonly occur when a defendant could not afford to pay the bond that had originally
been set. When this happened, BBU would ask GREEN to “split” the total bond into a
commercial portion and a non-commercial portion. At BBU’s request, GREEN would set the
commercial portion of the bond at an amount the defendant could afford and would set the
balance in some other manner. BBU would then post the commercial portion of the bond and
collect a percentage of that bond as commission. This practice allowed BBU to maximize its

profits and minimize its liability.
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5. It was a further part of the conspiracy that the defendant, ALAN GREEN, the
defendant, NORMAN BOWLEY, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, directly
and indirectly, concealed and hid the purposes of and acts done in furtherance of the racketeering
conspiracy.

F. Overt Acts

In furtherance of the said RICO conspiracy, and to accomplish the objects thereof, the
defendant, ALAN GREEN, the defendant, NORMAN BOWLEY, Louis Marcotte, Lori
Marcotte, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, committed and caused others to
commit the following Overt Acts, among others, in the Eastern District of Louisiana and
elsewhere:

1. On or about March 3, 1999, employees of BBU bought GREEN lunch at a
restaurant in New Orleans, Louisiana for a total cost of approximately $240.00.

2. In July 1999, Louis Marcotte and other employees of BBU bought GREEN and
others tickets to a performance at a casino in Biloxi, Mississippi.

3. On or about March 31, 2000, BBU paid for GREEN and others to participate in a
charity golf tournament at a total cost of $700.00.

4. In or about June 2000, during a trip to Sandestin, Florida, BBU paid for GREEN
and BOWLEY to play four rounds of golf together, at a total cost of more than $400.00.

5. In or about June 2000, during the same trip to Sandestin, Florida, Lori Marcotte
chartered a boat ride for GREEN, several other judges, and their guests at a cost in excess of
$1,000.00.

6. In or about June 2000, during the same trip to Sandestin, Florida, BBU hosted
several meals for GREEN and others at a total cost of more than $2,300.00.

7. In or about September 2000, BBU paid $340.00 in entry fees for a golf

tournament benefitting the school that GREEN’s children attend.
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8. On or about October 11, 2000, BBU paid for GREEN and others to play in a golf
tournament in New Orleans, Louisiana at a total cost of $750.00.

9. On or about October 13, 2000, Lori Marcotte bought GREEN and his staff lunch
at a restaurant in New Orleans, Louisiana at a total expense of $180.97.

10.  Onor about April 6, 2001, Louis Marcotte bought drinks and dinner for GREEN,
GREEN’s family, and several other judges and their guests at a casino in Biloxi, Mississippi.

11. On or about April 6, 2001, at BBU's request, GREEN split a bond for a defendant
charged with drug distribution and firearms offenses into a $100,000.00 commercial bond and
$250,500.00 personal surety bond.

12.  Inor about April 2001, BBU paid for GREEN and others to play in a golf
tournament in Gretna, Louisiana at a cost of $1,200.00.

13.  On or about June 22, 2001, BBU paid for GREEN and others to play in a golf
tournament in Belle Chase, Louisiana at a total cost of approximately $400.00.

14.  On or about July 2, 2001, BBU paid for GREEN and others to play in a golf
tournament in New Orleans, Louisiana at a total cost of approximately $500.00.

15.  Onor about August 23, 2001, BBU paid for GREEN and his party to play in a
golf tournament at a cost of $500.00.

16. On or about August 23, 2001, at BBU’s request, GREEN split the bond for a
defendant charged with drug offenses and automobile theft into a $100,000.00 commercial bond
and $500,000.00 personal surety bond.

17.  On or about October 3, 2001, BBU sent the paperwork and insurance premiums
for the bond set on the above-mentioned defendant to its insurance company in St. Petersburg,
Florida, via Federal Express.

18.  From a date unknown through 2001, BBU furnished parking spaces free of charge
for GREEN's secretary and staff.
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19.  On or about September 4, 2001, when an employee of another judge attempted to
take two of GREEN's spaces, an employee of BBU reassured GREEN's secretary that Louis
Marcotte had given four parking spaces to GREEN’s staff. Later that day, the BBU employee
stated that Louis Marcotte gave GREEN’s staff the parking spaces because GREEN “is very
good to us.” ‘

20.  On or about September 4, 2001, a BBU employee spoke with GREEN's secretary
about splitting a bond for a defendant charged with drug offenses.

21.  On or about September 5, 2001, at BBU's request, GREEN split the bond for the
above-mentioned defendant into a $60,000.00 commercial bond and a $531,000.00 personal
surety bond.

22. On or about November 30, 2001, after the above-mentioned defendant was
arrested again for separate drug offenses, GREEN split the bond for the second arrest into a
$20,000.00 commercial bond and a $60,000.00 personal surety bond.

23.  On or about March 10, 2002, BBU sent the paperwork and insurance premiums
for the bond set on the above-mentioned defendant to its insurance company in St. Petersburg,
Florida, via Federal Express.

24. In a telephone conversation on or about September 14, 2001, a BBU employee
told GREEN that a defendant who had been arrested on drug charges was able to post a
$10,000.00 commercial bond.

25.  On September 17, 2001, as requested by BBU, GREEN split the above-
mentioned defendant’s bond into a $10,000.00 commercial bond and a $25,000.00 personal
surety bond.

26.  After being released on the bond set by GREEN, the same defendant was arrested
on September 29, 2001 for bond violations and again on December 8, 2001 for possession and

distribution of crack cocaine.
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27. On or about December 12, 2001, at the request of BBU, GREEN signed another
bail order releasing the same defendant on an $8,000.00 commercial bond and a $22,000.00
personal surety bond.

28. In a telephone conversation on or about September 16, 2001, a BBU employee
told GREEN that a defendant charged with aggravated battery and disturbing the peace “rates a 5
and can afford a $5,000.00 commercial bond.” GREEN set the bond that BBU requested, and
the defendant was released later that evening.

29.  Onor about September 17, 2001, BBU paid for GREEN and others to play in a
golf tournament in Mandeville, Louisiana at a cost of $600.00.

30. On or about September 28, 2001, GREEN and BOWLEY played golf together.

31.  Later that day, BOWLEY and Lori Marcotte discussed getting a bond set.
BOWLEY stated, “Yeah, we’re going to get it done. He said he’s going to work with me.”

32. On or about September 28, 2001, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a
$100,000.00 commercial bond and a $150,000.00 personal surety bond on a defendant charged
with forcible rape and aggravated burglary.

33, On the same day, also at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $10,000.00
commercial bond and $40,000.00 personal surety bond for a defendant charged with burglary.

34, On or about October 4, 2001, GREEN held a campaign fund raiser. In a
telephone conversation the same day, Lori Marcotte asked Louis Marcotte about “GREEN’s
check.” Louis Marcotte stated, “We’re going to handle that. Not tonight. ... Well, I can’t talk
right now. You know what I mean.”

3s. On or about October 11, 2001, an employee of BBU asked BOWLEY if he could
talk to GREEN about setting several bonds on inmates at the Eastbank Detention Center. The

BBU employee specifically requested that the bonds be set at $30,000.00.
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36. On or about October 15, 2001, GREEN set a $30,000.00 commercial bond and a
$170,500.00 personal surety bond on a defendant at the Eastbank Detention Center charged with
stalking and making obscene phone calls.

37.  Onor about December 7, 2001, BBU sent the paperwork and insurance premiums
for the bond set on the above-mentioned defendant to its insurance company in St. Petersburg,
Florida, via Federal Express.

38.  On or about October 19, 2001, BOWLEY and GREEN played golf together.
During the golf game, a BBU employee called BOWLEY to ask if GREEN would sign several
bonds.

39. Later that day, at BBU's request, GREEN set a $125,000.00 commercial bond and
$396,500.00 personal surety bond for a defendant charged with firearms and drug offenses.

40. The same day, at BBU’s request, GREEN set a $10,000.00 commercial bond and
$10,000.00 personal surety bond for a defendant charged with aggravated battery by shooting.

41. On or about December 19, 2001 and on or about March 13, 2002, BBU sent the
paperwork and insurance premiums for the bonds set on the above-mentioned defendant to its
insurance company in St. Petersburg, Florida, via Federal Express.

42. On or about October 20, 2001, GREEN played in a golf tournament benefitting
his children’s school, at BBU’s expense.

43, During a telephone call on or about October 21, 2001, BOWLEY and Louis
Marcotte discussed BOWLEY’s golf game with GREEN on the previous Friday. BOWLEY
said, “Friday out on the golf course with the judge, I did about $250,000.00 for the uh, uh, Gretna
house.” Later in the conversation, BOWLEY and Marcotte discussed giving GREEN cash but
writing on the envelope “ALAN GREEN Campaign Fund.” Although Marcotte stated that a
cash gift was “completely legal,” he further stated, “We need to watch . . . what we say on the
phone ‘cause we’re saying, saying, ah, . . . I’'m more worried about the office phone but maybe

mine too . . .. BOWLEY then stated, “. . . what we saying, there ain’t nothing wrong. I just
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want to make sure I can give cash. If a man asks for cash for his fundraiser, I want to give cash .
...” Marcotte and BOWLEY further discussed giving “five.”

44.  On or about October 22, 2001, at approximately 9:00 a.m., a BBU employee
called the BBU cashier and asked for $5,000.00 in cash. The BBU employee stated, “That's for
Louis. NORMAN just called me.”

45.  The same day, at approximately 12:30 p.m., GREEN and BOWLEY played golf
together, and BBU paid for the entry fee of approximately $750.00.

46.  Later that day, at approximately 6:00 p.m., Louis Marcotte asked BOWLEY,
“Hey, you took care of business?” BOWLEY replied, “Yeah, yeah, that’s all taken care of, very
appreciative.”

47. On or about October 23, 2001, the defendant, ALAN GREEN, deposited
$1,500.00 in cash into his personal bank account.

48. On or about October 31, 2001, the defendant, ALAN GREEN, deposited $720.00
in cash into his personal bank account.

49, On November 9, 2001, Louis Marcotte had a telephone conversation with a BBU
employee about getting GREEN to set a “big” bond. Marcotte told the employee that GREEN
was playing golf with BOWLEY. The BBU employee responded that he was “gonna call him .
.. and see if I can’t get him to do this.”

50. The same day, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $20,000.00 commercial bond
and $60,500.00 personal surety bond for a defendant charged with drug and firearms offenses.

51.  On or about February 8, 2002, BBU sent the paperwork and insurance premiums
for the bond set on the above-mentioned defendant to its insurance company in St. Petersburg,

Florida, via Federal Express.

10
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52.  OnNovember 11,2001, GREEN and BOWLEY played golf together.

53. On November 12, 2001 at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $10,000.00
commercial bond and a $40,000.00 personal surety bond for a defendant charged with burglary
and arson.

54. On November 29, 2001, BOWLEY bought GREEN lunch at a restaurant in
Gretna, Louisiana at a total cost of $90.57.

55. On December 4, 2001, BOWLEY bought GREEN lunch at a restaurant in
Gretna, Louisiana at a total cost of $90.17.

56. On December 5, 2001, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $20,000.00
commercial bond and an $80,000.00 personal surety bond on a defendant charged with attempted
murder.

57. On December 6, 2001, at GREEN’s request, BOWLEY bought GREEN lunch at
a restaurant in Gretna, Louisiana, at a total cost of $60.82.

58. On December 6, 2001, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $30,000.00
commercial bond and a $110,500.00 personal surety bond for a defendant charged with drug and
weapons offenses.

59. Also on December 6, 2001, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $10,000.00
commercial bond and $31,500.00 personal surety bond for a defendant charged with possession
of stolen property and hit and run.

60.  On or about December 13, 2001, BOWLEY bought GREEN lunch at a
restaurant in Gretna, Louisiana, at a total cost of $44.97.

61. On or about December 14, 2001, GREEN played golf with BOWLEY.

62.  The same day, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $5,000.00 commercial bond
and $5,000.00 personal surety bond on a defendant charged with possession of a stolen vehicle.

63. On or about December 14, 2001, BOWLEY and Louis Marcotte discussed setting

a large bond. Marcotte stated that GREEN was “the only one who would do that bond.”

11
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64. On December 15, 2001, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $100,000.00
commercial bond and a $100,000.00 personal surety bond on a defendant charged with first
degree murder.

65.  On or about December 17, 2001, Lori Marcotte paid for a Christmas party for
GREEN and his staff at a restaurant in New Orleans, Louisiana, at a cost in excess of $700.00.

66.  Also in December 2001, BBU furnished the liquor for another Christmas party
hosted by GREEN.

67.  On or about December 27, 2001, GREEN signed a judgment finding in favor of
K-Mart, the defendant in a civil personal injury lawsuit. The plaintiff who had sued K-Mart in
the lawsuit was represented by Attorney #1.

68.  On January 3, 2002, Attorney #1 called BOWLEY to discuss the K-Mart
judgment. Attorney #1 told BOWLEY, “Well, I didn’t want to ask you about this ‘cause I know
this is your deal, but I just can’t focus or concentrate on anything until I ask. Um, did you hear
that Judge GREEN ruled on our case? . . .. He dismissed our case and ruled against us.”
BOWLEY responded, “Are you serious?” BOWLEY further stated “I’m in shock, uh, I can’t
believe that. I mean, you, you knew everything I knew when I knew it.” BOWLEY told
Attorney #1 that “the last conversation I had with him was, it was how much he was gonna
grant.” BOWLEY said that he did not know what went wrong with the case, “I’m just telling
you, you knew what I knew up until the last conversation I had, and the last conversation I had
was on the golf course and, and again just in passing it came up, and, and it wasn’t a matter of,
of, it was only a matter of how much . ... I actually thought how much was gonna be a whole
lot.” BOWLEY finally stated that he would talk to GREEN about the case.

69. On January 3, 2002, BOWLEY called back Attorney #1 about the K-Mart case.
BOWLEY told Attorney #1 that GREEN had made a “major mistake” ruling on behalf of K-
Mart and that the judgment was “being vacated as we speak.” BOWLEY explained that
GREEN signed the judgment on behalf of K-mart by mistake. BOWLEY further stated that

12
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“this could be embarrassing.” Attorney #1 stated “that really puts him in a bad position . . .
‘cause then it looks like it is a, you know, you know what I’'m saying, it is a fix.” BOWLEY
responded, “It’s not, it’s not, it’s got nothing to do with that.”

70. A short time later on the same day, Attorney #1 thanked BOWLEY for his help,
stating “that’s why I called you today, and I’m so glad that you were able to intervene like you
did.” ‘

71.  On or about January 3, 2002, GREEN vacated his previous judgment in which he
had ruled in favor of K-Mart.

72.  OnJanuary §, 2002, BOWLEY and GREEN played golf together.

73.  On or about January 9, 2002, BOWLEY paid Jefferson Parish Sheriff’s Captain
Guy Crosby approximately $1,000.00 in cash for using Sheriff’s Office computers to track down
defendants who had been released on bonds written by BBU but who had failed to appear in
court as required.

74.  On January 11, 2002, BOWLEY bought GREEN lunch at a restaurant in Gretna,
Louisiana at a total cost of approximately $50.00. During the lunch, GREEN used BOWLEY’s
cellular telephone to set a tee time for BOWLEY and GREEN to play golf.

75. The same day, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $40,000.00 commercial bond
and $65,000.00 personal surety bond on a defendant charged with drug offenses.

76.  On or about January 15, 2002, Louis Marcotte and BOWLEY discussed whether
Marcotte's plan to spend more time at his businesses in New York and California would affect
BBU's relationship with certain judges in Jefferson Parish. Marcotte stated, “Don't matter. As
long as you pay ‘em money just like him, whether he's there or not, if you give ‘em the money
they gonna respond . . . . It’s the friggin money . ...” Bowley stated, “That’s all it is. I
recognize that.”

77. On January 18, 2002, BOWLEY and GREEN discussed making a bond for the

brother of a well-known rap performer charged with second degree murder. GREEN asked

13
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BOWLEY, “Can y’all make a bond?” BOWLEY responded, “We can make a million dollar
bond if you could set it.” GREEN responded “Alright . . . . Okey doke.”

78.  Later that day, GREEN set the bond BBU requested but rescinded it when he
learned that a probation hold had been placed on the defendant related to attempted murder
charges in another parish.

79.  On January 24, 2002, Louis Marcotte bought lunch for GREEN and other judges
at a restaurant in Gretna, Louisiana at a cost of $346.34.

80.  The same day, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $30,000.00 commercial bond
and $20,000.00 personal surety bond on a defendant charged with aggravated battery.

81.  On or about February 7, 2002, having already vacated the judgment in favor of K-
Mart, GREEN signed a judgment awarding more than $800,000.00 to Attorney #1's client, the
plaintiff who had sued K-Mart.

82.  On or about February 8, 2002, GREEN and BOWLEY played golf.

83. The same day, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $15,000.00 commercial bond
and $5,500.00 personal surety bond on a defendant charged with battery and a $15,000.00
commercial bond on a defendant charged with a drug offense.

84.  On or about February 12, 2002, a BBU employee sought reimbursement for
$200.00 for “NORMAN BOWLEY for entertainment for JUDGE GREEN.”

85. On or about February 13, 2002, the defendant, NORMAN BOWLEY, and the
defendant, ALAN GREEN, played golf in Pass Christian, Mississippi.

86.  On or about February 15, 2002, GREEN deposited $200.00 in cash into his
personal checking account.

87. On February 13, 2002, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $4,000.00
commercial bond and a $6,000.00 personal surety bond on a defendant charged with a drug

offense and trespassing.
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88. On February 13, 2002, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $5,000.00
commercial bond and a $10,000.00 personal surety bond on a defendant charged with battery.

89.  On February 17, 2002, GREEN and BOWLEY played golf together.

90. On February 18, 2002, Louis Marcotte and Lori Marcotte discussed BOWLEY’s
golf outings with GREEN. Lori Marcotte stated, “I mean he [ BOWLEY] could say no
sometimes, huh?” Louis Marcotte responded, “I don’t think you ought to tell the Judge no. 1
mean we paying for it, you know.”

91. On February 25, 2002, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $6,000.00
commercial bond and $25,000.00 personal surety bond on a defendant charged with drug
offenses.

92. On or about the same date, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $10,000.00
commercial bond and $60,500.00 personal surety bond on defendant charged with a drug offense.

93. On February 26, 2002, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $10,000.00
commercial bond and $21,500.00 personal surety bond on a defendant charged with drug and
firearms offenses

94, On February 26, 2002, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $10,000.00
commercial bond and $10,000.00 personal surety bond on another defendant charged with
attempted robbery and battery.

9s. On February 26, 2002, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $15,000.00
commercial bond and $10,000.00 personal surety bond on a third defendant charged with drug
offenses.

96. On February 26, 2002, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $15,000.00
commercial bond and $10,000.00 personal surety bond on a fourth defendant charged with a drug

offense.
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97. On March 18, 2002, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $5,000.00 commercial
bond and a $5,000.00 personal surety bond on a defendant who had been arrested for a bond
surrender relating to drug offenses.

98.  On or about April 22, 2002, BBU sent the paperwork and insurance premiums for
the bond set on the above-mentioned defendant to its insurance company in St. Petersburg,
Florida, via Federal Express.

99. On March 19, 2002, BOWLEY bought GREEN lunch at a restaurant in Gretna,
Louisiana for a total charge of $78.17.

100.  On or about the same date, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $30,000.00
commercial bond and $60,500.00 personal surety bond on a defendant charged with drug
offenses.

101.  On or about April 23, 2002, BBU sent the paperwork and insurance premiums for
the bond set on that defendant to its insurance company in St. Petersburg, Florida, via Federal
Express.

102.  On March 20, 2002, BOWLEY bought GREEN lunch at a restaurant in Gretna,
Louisiana for a total charge of $48.87.

103.  On March 23, 2002, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $7,500.00 commercial
bond on a defendant charged with possession of stolen property.

104. The same day, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $10,000.00 commercial bond
on a separate defendant charged with a drug offense.

105.  On or about March 27, 2002, GREEN’s family member requested that GREEN
raise money for the political campaign of another family member. GREEN stated, “I have to be
careful who I call about that kind of stuff, man.” Later in the same conversation, GREEN told
the family member, “I got some folks owe me some favors. I think they’ll help.”

106.  On or about April 3, 2002, GREEN obtained $800.00 in cash from an attorney

who practiced in GREEN’s court. The attorney told GREEN the money was a campaign
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contribution to GREEN’s relative. GREEN later put a portion of the cash into his wallet, and
GREEN’s relative did not receive any portion of the contribution.

107.  On or about April 3, 2002, in GREEN’s chambers, the defendant, NORMAN
BOWLEY, pulled an envelope containing $5,000.00 in cash out of his pants pocket and handed
it to GREEN saying, “Coming to deliver on my promise.” GREEN responded, “Appreciate it.”
BOWLEY further stated, “Put that away somewhere.”

108. On or about May 6, 2002, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $15,000.00
commercial bond and $30,500.00 personal surety bond on a defendant charged with drug
offenses.

109. On or about the same date, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $20,000.00
commercial bond and a $35,500.00 personal surety bond on a defendant charged with drug
offenses.

110.  On or about May 7, 2002, Lori Marcotte, BOWLEY and other BBU employees
bought lunch for GREEN and several members of his staff at a restaurant in New Orleans,
Louisiana at a total cost of approximately $250.00.

111.  On May 24, 2002, GREEN and BOWLEY played golf together.

112.  On or about June 4, 2002, at the request of BBU, GREEN set a $250,000.00
commercial bond and a $451,500.00 personal surety bond on a defendant charged with attempted
armed robbery, battery of a police officer, sexual battery, and other offenses.

113.  OnJune 7, 2002, GREEN and BOWLEY played golf together.

114.  In August 2002, GREEN secured a loan from Hibernia National Bank in the
amount of $89,000.00.

115.  On or about August 20, 2002, GREEN wrote a check from his personal checking
account to Bail Bonds Unlimited in the amount of $5,000.00 and a second check from his
personal checking account to Bail Bonds, Inc. for $5,000.00. Both checks were mailed from

GREEN’s home to BOWLEY at BBU’s offices.
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116. Between September 2000 and December 2002, at BBU’s request, GREEN split
approximately 117 bonds and set approximately 268 bonds.
All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1962(d).
COUNT 2 - CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT MAIL FRAUD

A. At All Times Material Herein:

1. The allegations contained in Sections A and B of Count 1 are reincorporated as if
fully realleged.

B. The Scheme:

1. Beginning on an exact date unknown, but in or before 2000, and continuing until
the date of this indictment, in the Eastern District of Louisiana and elsewhere, the defendant,
ALAN GREEN, the defendant, NORMAN BOWLEY, and others, known and unknown to the
Grand Jury, knowingly and willfully devised and intended to devise a scheme and artifice to
defraud and to deprive the citizens of the State of Louisiana of the honest and faithful services,
performed free from deceit, bias, self-dealing, and concealment, of ALAN GREEN, an elected
official, in the performance of his official duties as a judge on the 24th Judicial District Court.

2. It was a part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that the defendant, NORMAN
BOWLEY, the defendant, ALAN GREEN, along with Louis Marcotte, Lori Marcotte, and
others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, engaged in a scheme to maximize BBU’s and the
Marcottes’ profits from writing bail bonds in Jefferson Parish and elsewhere through the
corruption of the defendant, ALAN GREEN.

3. It was a further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that the defendant,
NORMAN BOWLEY, along with Louis Marcotte, Lori Marcotte, and others known and
unknown to the Grand Jury, used the United States mails and other private interstate carriers to
process BBU bonds which had been corruptly obtained and to disguise cash payments as

campaign contributions.
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4. It was a further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that, in return for things
of value, ALAN GREEN would make himself available to BBU; quickly respond to the requests
of BBU; and set, reduce, increase, and split bonds to maximize BBU’s profits, minimize BBU’s
liability, and hinder BBU’s competition.

5. It was a further part of the conspiracy that, to allow BBU to maximize its profits,
the defendant, ALAN GREEN, would engage in the practice of “bond splitting.” Bond splitting
would commonly occur when a defendant could not afford to pay the bond that had originally
been set. When this happened, BBU would ask GREEN to “split” the total bond into a
commercial portion and a non-commercial portion. At BBU’s request, GREEN would set the
commercial portion of the bond at an amount the defendant could afford and would set the
balance in some other manner. BBU would then post the commercial portion of the bond and
collect a percentage of that bond as commission. This practice allowed BBU to maximize its
profits and minimize its liability.

6. It was a further part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that the defendant,
NORMAN BOWLEY, the defendant, ALAN GREEN, and others known and unknown to the
Grand Jury, directly and indirectly, concealed and hid the purposes of and acts done in
furtherance of the scheme.

C. The Conspiracy

From in or about 2000, and continuing through the date of this indictment, in the Eastern
District of Louisiana and elsewhere, the defendant, NORMAN BOWLEY, the defendant,
ALAN GREEN, Louis Marcotte, Lori Marcotte, and others known and unknown to the Grand
Jury, did knowingly and willfully conspire, combine, confederate and agree together to
knowingly and willfully cause mail to be delivered by the United States Postal Service and by a
commercial interstate carrier, to wit: Federal Express, for the purpose of executing the scheme

set forth in Section B, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341 and 1346.
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D. Overt Acts

From in or about 2000, and continuing through the date of this indictment, within the
Eastern District of Louisiana and elsewhere, the defendant, NORMAN BOWLEY, the
defendant, ALAN GREEN, Louis Marcotte, Lori Marcotte, and others known and unknown to
the Grand Jury, committed overt acts in furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect the objects
thereof, to wit: the overt acts enumerated in Section F of Count 1.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.

Count 3: Mail Fraud

A. The Scheme

The allegations contained in Sections A and B of Count 1 and Sections B and C of Count
2 are reincorporated as if fully realleged.
B. The Mailing

1. For the purpose of executing and attempting to execute the scheme and artifice to
defraud, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, on or about the date listed below, the defendant,
ALAN GREEN, did knowingly cause to be placed in an authorized depository for mail matter,

the matters and things listed below to be sent and delivered by the United States Postal Service:

Count | Date Mailed Origin Destination Description
3 August 20, Marrero, Gretna, Letter and two personal checks
2002 Louisiana Louisiana written to BBU for $5,000.00
each.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341, 1346, and 2.
Counts 4 - 7: Mail Fraud

A. The Scheme
The allegations contained in Section A of Count 1 and Section B and C of Count 2 are

reincorporated as if fully realleged.
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B. The Mailings

1. For the purpose of executing and attempting to execute the scheme and artifice to
defraud, in the Eastern District of Louisiana, on or about the dates listed below, the defendant,
NORMAN BOWLEY, and the defendant, ALAN GREEN, did knowingly cause to be placed in
an authorized depository for mail matter, the matters and things listed below to be sent and

delivered by a commercial interstate carrier, to wit: Federal Express:

Count | Date Mailed Origin Destination Description

4 October 3, Gretna, St. Petersburg, Bond premiums and bond
2001 Louisiana Florida paperwork for defendant K.P.

5 December 7, | Gretna, St. Petersburg, Bond premiums and bond
2001 Louisiana Florida paperwork for defendant HW.

6 March 13, Gretna, St. Petersburg, Bond premiums and bond
2002 Louisiana Florida paperwork for defendant W.T.

7 April 22, Gretna, St. Petersburg, Bond premiums and bond
2002 Louisiana Florida paperwork for defendant O.S.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341, 1346, and 2.
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NOTICE OF RACKETEERING FORFEITURE

1. The allegations of Count 1 of this indictment are realleged and incorporated by
reference as though set forth fully herein for the purpose of alleging forfeiture to the United
States of America pursuant to the provisions of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1963.

2. Defendants ALAN GREEN and NORMAN BOWLEY have interests which
they acquired and maintained in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1962, thereby
making all such interests subject to forfeiture to the United States of America, pursuant to
Title 18, United States Code, Section 1963(a)(1).

3. Defendants ALAN GREEN and NORMAN BOWLEY have property
constituting, or derived from, proceeds, which they obtained directly and indirectly from the
aforesaid racketeering activity, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1962, which
property is subject to forfeiture to the United States of America, pursuant to Title 18, United
States Code, Section 1963(a)(3).

4. The interests of the defendants subject to forfeiture to the United States pursuant
to Title 18, United States Code, Section 1963(a)(1) and (3) include, but are not limited to any and
all proceeds traceable thereto.

5. If any of the property described above as being subject to forfeiture, as a result of

any act or omission of the defendants:

a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third person;

c. has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

d. has been substantially diminished in value; or

e. has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided without
difficulty;
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it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 1963(m), to
seek forfeiture of any other property of said defendants up to the value of the above forfeitable
property.

6. The above-named defendants, and each of them, are jointly and severally liable
for the forfeiture obligations as alleged above;

All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 1963.

NOTICE OF MAIL FRAUD FORFEITURE

1. The allegations of Counts 2 through 7 of this indictment are realleged and
incorporated by reference as though set forth fully herein for the purpose of alleging forfeiture to
the United States of America pursuant to the provisions of Title 18, United States Code,
Sections 1341, 371 and 981(a)(1)(C), made applicable through Title 28, United States Code,
Section 2461(c) and Title 21, United States Code, Section 853.

2. As aresult of the offenses alleged in Counts 2 through 7, defendant, ALAN
GREEN,; shall forfeit to the United States pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Sections
1341, 371 and 981(a)(1)(C), made applicable through Title 28, United States Code, Section
2461(c) and Title 21, United States Code, Section 853, any and all property, real or personal,
which constitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable to a violation of Title 18, United States
Code, Sections 1341 and 371.

3. As aresult of the offenses alleged in Counts 2, 4, 5, 6 and 7, defendant,
NORMAN BOWLEY, shall forfeit to the United States pursuant to Title 18, United States
Code, Sections 1341, 371 and 981(a)(1)(C), made applicable through Title 28, United States
Code, Section 2461(c) and Title 21, United States Code, Section 853, any and all property, real
or personal, which constitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable to a violation of Title 18,

United States Code, Sections 1341 and 371.
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4. If any of the above described property, as a result of any act or omission of the
defendants:
a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;
b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third person;
C. has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;
d. has been substantially diminished in value; or
e. has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided without
difficulty;

it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p), to

seek forfeiture of any other property of said defendants up to the value of the above forfeitable

property.
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All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341, 371 and 981(a)(1)(C),
made applicable through Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461(c) and Title 21, United
States Code, Section 853.

A TRUE BILL:

e 2

FOREPERSON y

CHIEF, CRIMINAL DIVISION
Bar Roll No. 9020

Mo DO

WILLIAM P. GIBBENS
ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY
Bar Roll No. 27225

MICHAEL W. MAGNER
ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY
Bar Roll No. 1206

New Orleans, Louisiana
September 29, 2004

25



